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I. INTRODUCTION Policies

Background

This summary report is one of five summary reports generated by the Professional

Improvement Assessment project. The Professional Improvement Assessment project

was conducted by the University of North Texas. The University of North Texas was the

successful bidder for the Coordinating Board's RFP:

1300-B, an assessment of current institutional policies and activities with
respect to funding and oth6r support of faculty development, and
development of case studies of effective models for dissemination to
encourage implementation of effective practices and/or workshops.

The objectives of the approved project were:

A. Conduct an assessment of technical/vocational faculty and staff

(administrators, counselors) professional development activities currently

being conducted by Texas community/junior colleges and technical

institutes.

B. Prepare and disseminate the results of the assessments.

C. Evaluate the project in terms of project installation, process, and products.

Statement of the Problem

The major purpose of this phase of the study was to develop a database that

identified the professional improvement needs of postsecondary technical/vocational

personnel and the policies and procedures of the institutional plan for faculty

development of technical/vocational personnel. Two anticipated results of the project

were:

1. The establishment of a database that could be used by staff of the

1



Community College and Technical Institutes Division of the

Coordinating Board in making management decisions to improve,

modernize, and develop a higher quality of statewide postsecondary

technical/vocational professional improvement activities; and

The fmdings of the study could be used by the coordinators/

directors of local institutional plans for faculty development to

better meet the professional development needs of technical/

vocational personnel.

2
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Summary Report of Policies

U. Procedures

One of the specific requirements of the RFP for which this project was contracted

was to conduct a statewide assessment of the policies and procedures of postsecondary

institutional plans for faculty development. A review of the literature was made by the

project staff to identify previous research procedures used in the assessment of policies

and procedures of postsecondary institutions used for faculty development.

The review of the literature revealed that most all of the procedures used in

previous research conducted for this topic were similar in format and content to the

requirements of the respective regional college accrediting association. A draft of a

proposed questionnaire designed to assess the policies and procedures of local

institutional plans was developed and submitted to the members of the project advisory

committee. The questionnaire was revised, using the recommendations of the advisory

committee members, and prepared for mailing. The questionnaire, presented in

Appendix A, was developed and worded in a manner which would most reflect the intent

of the Coordinating Board's guidelines for technical/vocational personnel. The Texas

Higher Education Coordinating Board's Technical and Vocational Persomel Guidelines

state:

An Institution must provide faculty, career development persomiel, and
administrators in technical and vocational programs the opportunity to
continue their professional development throughout their careers and must
demonstrate that such development takes place. The general tone and
policies of an institution must make it clear that individual faculty and staff
members are to take the initiative in promoting their own professional
growth.



The survey questionnaire was mailed to the coordinator or director of the

institutional plan for faculty development of the seventy campuses of the fifty-five

community colleges and technical institute districts. Forty-seven of the fifty-five

postsecondary districts responded to the request for data, proviaing an overall response

rate of eighty-six percent. Responses were received from seventy-nine percent of Lhe

seventy campuses.

A complete description of the procedures for conducting the project is printed in

the Final Report sent to the Coordinating Board. Other summary reports resulting from

this project are:

Summary Report of the Professional Improvement Needs of
Postsecondary Career Counselors;

Summary Report of the Professional Improvement Needs of Faculty For
Postsecondary Health Occupations Progams;

A Compilation of Reported Professional Development Activities and
Effective Models of Faculty Development for Postsecondary Technical/
Vocational Personnel; and

Summary It-port of the Professional Improvement Needs of
Postsecondary Career Counselors.
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Summary of Findings

The questionnaire used in conducting this assessment of policies and procedures

consisted of questions that would best reflect the intent of 9.65 of the Texas Higher

Education Coordinating Board under Title 19 of the Texas Administrative Code.

9.65 (c) states:

All public community/junior colleges shall demonstrate promotion of
teaching excellence by developing an institutional plan for faculty
professional development.

(1) The institutional plan must address full and part-time
teacher preparation and professional development.
(2) The institutional plan shall reflect the personnel
requirements as stated in the Coordinating Board publication
"Qualifications of Technical and Vocational Personnel" and
adhere to the standards of tbe college delegate assembly of
the Commission on Colleges of the Southern Association of
Colleges and Schools.

The survey results showed that all of the responding institutions had policies and

procedures adopted and had implemented an institutional plan for faculty professional

development.

The responses to questions on the survey which could be answered without

narrative are presented in Table I. It was found that ninety-five percent of the

respondents' institutional plans included provisions for the institution to plan and

conduct professional development activities. Only five percent (three respondents) of the

respondents had institutional plans that did not include planning and conducting

professional development activities for faculty. These three institutions did require that

the faculty and staff arrange and schedule their own professional improvement activities.

It was observed that seventy-two percent of the institutions that planned and conducted

professional development activities also required the faculty and staff to schedule and

arrange for their own professional development activities.

5
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Table I

Tabulation Responses to Questions on the Survey G! Institutional/Policy Procedures
of Public Two-year Postsecondary Institutions in Texas

1. Does your institutional plan include
provisions for the institution to plan and
conduct professional development activities?

2. Does your institutional plan require that faculty
and staff arrange and schedule their own
professional improvement activities?

4. Is a committee(s) used to advise or assist with the
professional development activities?

Number of Institutions
Respending

Percent of Respondents
Checking Yes

56 95

50 76

56 64

Technical All Non-Technical
Vocational Personnel Vocational Personnel

6. Are separate committees used for
Yszfi ys5

a. Full-time instructors? 42 12 40 13

b. Part-time instructors? 42 7 39 5

c. Administrators? 41 7 39 8

d. Career Counselors? 39 3 37 3

7. Does your institution require
participation in professional
improvement activities by:

a. Full-time instructors? 53 79 47 72

b. Part-time instructors? 49 33 46 30

c. Administrators? 51 67 44 61

d. Career Counselors? 51 65 46 61

6
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It was found that sixty-four percent of the respondents used a committee or

committees to advise or assist with the professional development activities. Question 6

of the questionnaire was posed to determine where separate committees were used and

if there was a significant difference in the use of committees for technical/vocational

personnel and non-technical/vocational personnel. It was found that there was no

significant difference in the use of separate committees for technical/vocational

personnel and non-technical/vocational personnel. The number of separate committees

used by staffing pattern ranged from a low of three percent of respondents for counselors

to a high of thirteen percent of respondents for full-time instructors.

The membership of the committees for faculty development changed annually. A

great number of the respondents reported that a chair for the committee for faculty

development was elected or appointed each year. The chair of the committee and the

institutional representative (coordinator/director) for the institutional plan for faculty

development were not, in many cases, the same individual. In most cases the

coordinator/director of the institutional plan for faculty development maintained that

position for two or more years. In community college districts with two or more

campuses it was found that each campus had separate committees and institutional plans.

The institutional plans of the individual campuses were operated under general policies

of the district but were designed to meet the needs of the individual campus.

It was found that a greater number of the responding institutions required

participation in professional improvement activities of full-time technical/vocational

instructors (79%) than was required of full-time non-technical/vocational instructors

(72%). Refer to question 7 tabulations in Table 1.



TABLE 2

Comparison of Responses kir TaeltakalifVocational Personnel
and Non-Teekaltal/Vonitional Pennant! for Qrsestions S, t and le

8. Does your institution provide release time for the following
personnel to partkipate in professional inapoNement activities?

a. Full-time instructors

b. Part-time instructors

c. Administrators

d. Career Counselors

9. Is participation in professional development activities required
for advancement on the institution's salary schedule/salary increase for

& Full-time instructors
en

b. Part-time instructors

c. Administrators

d. Career Counselors

e. Other Nen-Instructional
Professionals

ID. Are financial 100011livi36 provided as a rewasst for participation
in professional deve/opment activities for

a. Full-time instmctors

b. Part-time instructors

c. Administrators

d. Career Counselors

e. Other Non-Instructional
Professionals

Percent of respondents answering 'yes"
o 10 30 30 40 SO 60 70 O3 00 100e_114At 1 le

1111.1.11.6

444 4 4 044 441,4 ,40..!

*tit 411 4444 4 ttt 44.4..4.44.4.44

1 3 1 4
Technical/Vocational Personnel vav!mi4 in

Non-Technical/Vocational Personnel 4444444
*44 tttt 44,141



Table 2 shows a comparison of the responses for technical/vocational personnel

and non-technical/vocational personnel for questions 8, 9, and 10 on the questionnaire.

A review of Table 2 reveals that there is very little difference in the requirements

for personnel development and incentives of the responding institutions between

technical/ vocational personnel and non-technical/vocational personnel. Less than fifty

percent of the respondents required participation in professional development activities

for advancement on the institution's salary schedule/salary increase.

As presented in Table 3, the most common incentive/reward used to encourage

the participation of technical/vocational personnel in personnel development activities

was release time. Eighty-nine percent of the respondents provided release time for full-

time technical/vocational instructors to participate in professional development activities.

However, only forty-two percent of the institutions provided release time to part-time

faculty as an incentive to participate in professional development activities.

Table 3

Incentives/Rewards Used to Encourage
Participation of Technical/Vocational Personnel

in Professional Development Activities

Incentive raiktimintowsn buzgoinfm_toni Administrators Ca Ter Counsetots

Percent of Petrent of Percent of Percent of
N. Respondents N. Respondents N. Respondems N. Respondents

Release lime 54 89% 53 42% 54 85% 56 79%

Participation Required 53 42 46 7 48 19 51 29

Financial 55 56 52 19 54 30 53 42



Table 4 presents the responses to the question, "Do you maintain a professional

growth or contract with:?". Full-time technical/vocational instructors was the category of

personnel with which the greatest number of respondents (52 percent) maintained a

professional growth plan or contract.

Table 4

Percent of' Respondents Maintaining a
Professional Growth Plan or Contract

with Faculty and Staff

Category of
Pemonnet

TechnicaVVOCIltionti
Fersonnel

All Non-Technical/Vocational
Personnel

Number of Percent of Number of Percent of
Respondents Respondents Respondents Respondents

Full-time Instructors 54 52% 51 51%

Pan-time Instructors 48 8 43 7

Administrators 53 40 50 40

Counselors $3 40 50 40

A variety of techniques were used by the two-year postseamdary institutions to

recognize or document professional development activities. As shown in Table 5, the

most common technique used was informal feedback as reported by forty-four of the

respondents. Only two respondents reported that no evaluation or documentation was

used.



Table S

Techniques Used in the Institutional Faculty
Professional Development Plan to Recoggize,

Evaluate, or Document Professional Development Activities

technioue Number of Respondents

Informal Feedback
44

Questionnaire
19

Written Report by Participant
37

Records, Log& Diaries 21

Certificate of Participadon
34

Observation n
Intewiew is

Test Scores
3

No Evaluation Performed
2

Other s

During the past fiscal year, seven institutions provided paid sabbatical leaves for

sixteen instructors of technical/vocational programs and 1 career counselor. Also as

observed in Table 6, nine institutions provided financial support for 107 technical/

vocational instructors to participate in courses offered at other colleges and universities.

Travel expenses for 1,462 trips of instructors, 236 trips of administrators, and 78 trips of

career counselors to participate in conferences, workshops, or seminars, were paid by

forty-seven of the institutions responding to the survey.



Table 6

Participation of Technical/Vocational Personnel
in Professional Development Activities for

the Previous Fiscal Year

&mice

Number of Technical/Vocational Personnel Using Service i.e.

Part-Ttme
Instructors

Full-Time Career Number of
Instructors Administrators Counselors Respondents

Paid sabbatical leave 16

Mini-sabbatical paid leave
(less than one year)

1

7 5

Release time for professional I 12 504 86 25 22
development (paid)

Unpaid leave for professional 12 41
development

Faculty exchanges with other
colleges

Financial support for courses
at other colleges/universities

11

1

107 4 1 9

Tuition waiver for at own 5
institution

603 194 172

Paid professional membership
dues

375 64 13 21

Paid expenses for attendance
at conferences workshops,
seminars

28 1,462 236 78 47

Planned Retreats 23 313 84 17 12



Table 7 shows the budgetary mechanism used to fund professional development

activities. Based on the responses received, some of the institutions use multiple

budgetary mechanisms. The use of "one single institutional line item" was reported by

thirty-two institutions while thirty-three institutions reported using "line item budget used

by department/division." Two of the responding institutions did not have a budgetary

provision for professional development.

Table 7

Methods Used to Budget for
Professional Development Activities

Number of institutions

Line item budget by department/division 33

One single institutional line item 32

No budgetary provision for professional development 2

Other 22



Table 8 shows sources of funds and amounts of funds from each source expended

for the professional development of technical/vocational personnel.

g2,a_te

Table 8

Source and Approldmate Amount of Funds by Source Spent by
Responding Institutions for Professional Development Activities of

Technical/Vocational Personnel During the Past Fiscal Year

Number of
Institutions Jjnqfund

Men
"mg

Local General
Operatinl Fund 39 $ 500 S21,671 $127,000 $ 845,185

Cali D. Perkins 36 $1,800 $ 9,S83 $ 40,000 $ 344,981

Local Industry 1 NOT REPORTED

fahss 4

Professional development !cam $34,000
Halliburton Foundation 10,2%
Title M 26,683
Foundation 10,000 $ 84).979

Total of funds zeporte4 used for technical/vocational personnel development $1,271,145

Three other surveys conducted by this assessment project requested information

that was related to the institutional plans for faculty development. Postsecondary

administrators of technical/vocational programs, instructors of health occupations

programs, and career counselors were asked two questions related to their evaluation of

their respective institutional plan for faculty. The two questions and responses on the

three surveys that related to the institutional plan for faculty development are presented

in Tables 9, 10, and 11. The information shown on these three tables indicate that the

professional improvement activities being conducted at the institutional level for these

three groups of personnel have great opportunities for improvement.



Survey Questions

Table 9

Responses of Administrators of
Postsecondary Technical/Vocational Programs

Related to Institutional Plan for Faculty Development

Percent Responding
Yes

11. Do you feel that the present in-service
staff development efforts of your
institution are adequate? 244 46% 54%

12. Are faculty in your institution provided
useful assistance in developing a
personalized plan for professional
development? 237 46% 54%

Table 10

Responses of Postsecondm
Health Occupations Instructors

Related to Institutional Plan for Faculty Development

Percent Responding
Survey Questions

11. Do you feel that the present in-service
staff development efforts of your
institution are adequate? 343 49% 51%

12. Are faculty in your institution provided
useful assistance in developing a
personalized plan for professional
development? 349 46% 54%

15 21



Table 11

Responses of Postsecondart
Career Counselors Related to

Institutional Plan for Faculty Development

Survey Questions
Percent Responding
Ye5 Ng

11. Do you feel that the present in-service
staff development efforts of your
institution are adequate? 100 47% 53%

12. Are faculty in your institution provided
useful assistance in developing a
personalized plan for professional
development? 94 36% 64%

16
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IV. Summary, Conclusions, and Recommendations

Summaa.glinilinga

The data presented for this study was collected from forty-seven of the fifty-five

public community/junior colleges and technical institute districts in Texas. It was found

that each of the two-year postsecondary institutions responding to the survey had a

functional institutional plan for faculty developnnnt. Sixty-four percent of the

responding institutions used a committee to advise and/or assist with the professional

development activities. The data revealed that policies of the institutional plans

provided equal requirements and provisions for technical/vocational personnel and all

other professional personnel of the institution.

There are indications, based on the responses of the administrator, career

counselor, and health occupations instructors respondents that local professional

development activities, on a state-wide bases, are not meeting the faculty development

needs of technical/vocational personnel.

Conclusions

Based on the fmdings of this study it is concluded that:

(1) Each public two-year postsecondary institution is making an active and

sincere effort to plan and conduct faculty development activities to

meet the professional development needs of technical/vocational

personnel;

(2) There is a need for technical assistance to be provided to each of the

institutions in maintaining a current assessment of the professional

17 23



development needs of technical/vocational personnel; and

(3) There is a need for assistance in planning and conducting activities to

meet the identified professional development needs.

Recommendations

The following recommendations are made based on an analysis of the findings of

this study.

(1) The statewide assessment of the professional development needs of

postsecondary technical/vocational personnel be continued on a three-

year interval.

(2) The results of the Ftatewide assessments should be compiled and

disseminated on a state and institutional basis.

(3) All personnel development activities for postsecondary

technical/vocational personnel, supported by PL 101-392 ("State

Program") funds at the state level, should be conducted on a statewide

basis.

(4) The "state program" of personnel development for postsecondary

technical/vocational personnel should be conducted with the assistance

of a State Advisory Committee composed of postsecondary technical/

vocational personnel, representatives of vocational teacher education

institutions, and members of the Federal Projects staff of the Texas

Higher Education Coordinating Board.



APPENDIX A

INSTITUTIONAL POLICIES/
PROCEDURES QUESTIONNAIRE



Survey of Professional Development Activities
for Postsecondary Technical and VocatioAal Personnel

Survey No. 1 - Institutional Policies/Procedures

Name of Community/Junior College district or campus or Technical Institute campusreporting.

I. Does your institutional plan include provisions for the institution to plan and conductprofessional development activities?

Yes No

2. Does your institutional plan require that faculty and staff arrange and schedule their
own professional improvement activities?

Yes No

3. What is the name and title of the individual who coordinates or directs yourinstitutional plan for faculty professional development?

4. Is a committee(s) used to advise or assist with the professional development activities?

Yes No

5. If a single committee is used describe the composition by position title and number.



6. Are separate committees used for:

Technical
Vocational Personnel

All Non-Technical
Vocational Personnel

a. Full-time instructors? Yes No Yes No

b. Part-time instructors? Yes No Yes No

c. Administrators? Yes No Yes No

d.

e.

Career Counselors?

Other? (Please specify)

Yes No Yes No

7. Does your institution require participation in professional improvement activities by:

Technical
Vocational Personnel

All Non-Technical
Vocational Personnel

a. Full-time instructors? Yes No Yes No

b. Part-time instructors? Yes No Yes No

C. Administrators? Yes No Yes No

d. Career Counselors? Yes No Yes No

8. Does your institution provide release time for the following personnel to participate in
professional improvement activities?

Technical
Vocational Personnel

All Non-Technical
Vocational Personnel

a. Full-time instructors? Yes No Yes No

b. Part-time instructors? Yes No Yes No

c. Administrators? Yes No Yes No

Ci. Career Counselors? Yes No Yes No



9. Is participation in professional development activities required for advancement on the..

institution's salary schedule/salary increase for:

Technical
Vocational Personnel

All Non-Technical
Vocational Personnel

a. Full-time instructors? Yes No Yes No

b. Part-time instructors? Yes No Yes No

C. Administrators? Yes No Yes No

d.

e.

Career Counselors?

Other Non-Instructional

Yes No Yes No

Professional? Yes No Yes No

10. Are financial incentives provided as a reward for participation in professional developmentactivities for:

Technical
Vocational Personnel

All Non-Technical
Vocational Personnel

a. Full-time instructors? Yes No Yes No

b. Part-time instructors? Ycs No Yes No

c. Administrators? Yes No Yes No

d.

e.

Career Counselors?

Other Non-Instructional

Yes No Yes No

Professional? Yes No Yes No

11. Do you maintain a professional growth plan or a contract with:

Technical
Vocational Personnel

All Non-Technical
Vocational Personnel

a. Full-time instructors? Yes No Yes No

b. Part-time instructors? Yes No Yes No

c. Administrators? Yes No Yes No

d.

e.

Career Counselors?

Other Non-Instructional

Yes No Yes No

Professional? Yes No Yes No

28
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12. Please check the techniques used in your institutional faculty development plan torecognize, and or document development activities (you may check more than onetechnique).

MIfa

011111=11.1

111117

Informal Feedback

Questionnaire

Written Report By Participant

Records, Logs, Diaries

Certificate of participation

Observation

Interview

Test Scores

No Evaluation Performed

Other (specify)

13. How many inservice days or specific calendar days are designated by your institution(campus) for professional development activities?

14. Please check all of the appropriate local budgetary mechanism(s) used by your institutionto fund professional development activities.

Line item budget used by department/division.

One single institutional line item.

No budgetary provision for professional development.

Other: (please describe)

29
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15. Please identify source and approximate amount of funds spent by your institutior during
the past fiscal year on professional improvement activities for technical/vocationalpersonnel.

IMMIIMIII Local General Operating Fund $

Carl D. Perkins. $

Local Industry

(Other: please list)

16. What percent of your institution's total operating budget was used last year for
professional development activities?

percent.

30
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. 17. For the last fiscal year, please estimate number, by types of technical/vocational personnel
who participated in professional improvement activities as a result of your institution
providing or arranging for the following services:

Service

Number of Technical/Vocational Personnel Using Service i.e.

Part-Time
Instructors

Full-lime
Instructors Mministrators

Career
Counselors

Paid sabbatical leave

Mini-sabbstleal paid leave
(less than one year)

Release time for professional
development (paid)

Unpaid leave for professional
development

'-

Faculty exchanges with other
colleges

Financial support for courses
at other colleges/universities

Tuition waiver for at own
ittstitutiCla

,......
Paid professional membership
dues

Paid expenses for attendance
at conferences, workshops,
seminars

Planned Retreats

18. Does your institution maintain a professional library for faculty/staf in support of. it's professional development plan?

.

.

Yes No

19. Does your institution maintain a newsletter (in-house) as a service to support
professional development activities?

Yes No

A-7
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20. List other services not included on this survey that your institution provides to
support professional development activities.

Survey form completed by:

Name:

Title:


